Minutes of the Workshop Meeting of January 4, 2023
Page 3

CITY OF BLAINE

ANOKA COUNTY, MINNESOTA

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOP

Wednesday, January 4, 2023
5:30PM
Cloverleaf Farm Room A
10801 Town Square Drive

CALL TO ORDER
The meeting was called to order by Mayor Sanders at 5:30PM.
ROLL CALL

PRESENT:
Mayor Tim Sanders, Councilmembers Terra Fleming, Chris Massoglia, Tom Newland, Jess Robertson, and Lori Saroya.
ABSENT:  None. 

Quorum Present.

 

ALSO PRESENT:  City Manager Michelle Wolfe; Community Development Director Erik Thorvig; City Planner Sheila Sellman; Safety Services Director/Police Chief Brian Podany; Deputy Finance Director Ali Bong; City Engineer Dan Schluender; City Attorney Tom Loonan; Communications Manager Ben Hayle; Senior Parks & Recreation Manager Jerome Krieger; Deputy Public Works Director Nick Fleischhacker; and City Clerk Catherine Sorensen.
3.1
Closed Session Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes Section 13D.05, Subd. 3(b) to Discuss Threatened Litigation by Blaine/Atlantic Funding, LLC Regarding the Denial of its Land Use Applications and Section 13D.05, Subd. 23(b) to Discuss Threatened Litigation Arising From the Lever Street Improvement Project Regarding 4601 125th Avenue NE.

The Council met in closed session pursuant to Minnesota Statute Section 13D.05, Subd. 3(b) to discuss threatened litigation by Blaine/Atlantic Funding, LLC regarding the denial of its land use applications and Section 13D.05, Subd. 23(b) to discuss threatened litigation arising from the Lever Street Improvement Project regarding 4601 125th Avenue NE.
The Council took a short recess for Councilmember photos.
3.2
Sunset Avenue and 125th Avenue (CSAH 14) Intersection Improvements Project.

City Engineer Schluender stated Anoka County is proposing roadway improvements at the intersection of Sunset Avenue and 125th Avenue (CSAH 14). The concept layout shows the configuration of what the proposed roundabout will look like and how it will fit into the corridor. The county is preparing to start the public engagement portion of the project and would like to introduce the project to the City Council. The proposed layout is nearing the 30% design plan and is being evaluated for impacts to wetlands, right-of-way, geotechnical, and traffic staging. The county’s design team continues to coordinate the project with several agencies including the City of Lino Lakes and the Rice Creek Watershed. Staff reviewed the project timeline and asked for comments or questions.
Nick Dobda, Design Engineering Supervisor at Anoka County, discussed the plans Anoka County has for Sunset Avenue and 125th Avenue. He reported this intersection was rural and poorly lit. He discussed how the improvements would improve safety and commented further on how the project would be funded. He stated his goal would be to work with staff to ensure the intersection was consistent with future development while also meeting the needs for future traffic. He discussed how this project would be split between Anoka County, Blaine and Lino Lakes. He estimated the project would cost $2 million and noted the county had already received $1.2 million in federal funding. He anticipated 30% of the remaining expenditures would be the responsibility of Blaine.
Aaron Anderson, Design Engineer at Anoka County, commented on the advantages of having a roundabout at this intersection. He stated safety would be improved and conflict points reduced. He noted roundabouts had a lower maintenance point over time. The timeline for this project was further discussed and it was noted final design would be completed by December of 2023 and construction would begin in 2024. He reported the county would be hosting a public open house at Sunrise Elementary on Wednesday, January 25. In addition, the county would be hosting a virtual online open house beginning January 9.
Mayor Sanders stated he appreciated how the county was being proactive at this intersection given how much more development would be coming to this area of Blaine and Lino Lakes. 

Councilmember Robertson asked if the roundabout would have the ability to grow or expand in the future. Mr. Dobda stated Anoka County was designing a one-lane roundabout and explained all proposed and future development was taken into consideration with the modeling. He reported the one lane roundabout would adequately service the area for the next 20+ years.
Councilmember Massoglia questioned if a bike trail was proposed with the roundabout. Mr. Dobda indicated a regional bike trail was proposed to the south of the roundabout. Mr. Schluender explained the existing roadway has an eight-foot shoulder which accommodates walking and biking. He stated these would not be present at the roundabout, which meant walkers and bikers would shift onto a trail. 

3.3
Radisson Road Townhomes (formerly Applewood Pointe) Comprehensive Plan Amendment Discussion.

City Planner Sellman stated United Properties received a conditional use permit to construct an 88-unit 3 and 4 story senior (Age 62+) cooperative building on September 8, 2021, for properties located at 11967 and 11985 Radisson Road NE. The approval also included a rezoning from FR (Farm Residential) to DF (Development Flex), a preliminary plat to combine two parcels into one parcel with right-of-way for 121st Avenue, and a comprehensive plan amendment from MDR (Medium Density Residential) to HDR (High Density Residential). Staff explained the proposed density of the multi-family building was approximately 12.46 units per acre. The amendment was requested because apartments/cooperatives are not listed in the MDR definition in the 2040 Comprehensive Plan and are solely listed in the HDR definition. 
Ms. Sellman reported United Properties has indicated to staff that the construction market has caused prices of the units to become too high for the market and have abandoned the project. Ron Clark Construction and Kaeding Development are proposing a 76-unit rental neighborhood on the site formally known as Applewood Pointe. The townhomes would consist of 42 two-story townhome and 34 three-story townhomes. 
Mike Walden, Ron Clark Construction, discussed how the market had impacted the United Properties senior cooperative project and stated he would like to move forward with a townhome project. He explained he has completed both rental and for sale townhome projects. He indicated the units would be a mix of two-bedroom and three-bedroom units with rents between $2,600-$3,500 a month. He commented on how interest rates are impacting rental rates and homeownership. He indicated the property would be managed by Stevens Scott.
Mayor Sanders asked if the Council supported the land use change. The consensus of the Council was to support the land use change. 
Councilmember Massoglia stated he was not as supportive of rental townhomes then indicated concern about how the property would be accessed. 

Councilmember Newland explained he supported the proposed townhome project. 
Councilmember Fleming questioned if the townhome units would be age restricted. Mr. Walden reported the units would not be age restricted.

Councilmember Fleming indicated she was concerned with how these townhomes would impact the school district. 

Councilmember Robertson discussed how the City was in communication with the school district on a regular basis to ensure they understand the future growth potential and proposed projects in the City and encouraged appropriate colors and materials for the project. 

Mayor Sanders encouraged the developer to consider having four-sided architecture on these townhomes. 

Council consensus was to support the townhomes moving forward as proposed. 
3.4
City Council Priority Economic Development Areas.

This item was postponed to the January 9, 2023 workshop meeting.
Other Business
Mr. Schluender provided the Council with a handout updating the Council on the funding that has been secured for TH65 and commented on the additional grants the City would be pursuing for the TH65 corridor.

Further discussion ensued regarding the upcoming City Council meeting and it was noted action on Item 13.1 would be postponed to a future meeting.
The Workshop was adjourned at 7:25PM.








Tim Sanders, Mayor

ATTEST:

Catherine Sorensen, CMC, City Clerk
Submitted by Minute Maker Secretarial 

